

TASMANIAN HERITAGE COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING NO. 20211020

Wednesday 20 October 2021

Venue: Derwent Valley Boat House, New Norfolk and via videoconference
 Start time: 9:08am

1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.1. Welcome

1.1.1. The Chair welcomed members to the meeting and paid respect to the traditional owners of the land.

1.1.2. Present and Apologies

Tasmanian Heritage Council

Brett Torossi	Chair
Simon Angilley	Member with expertise in engineering, nominated by the Local Government Association of Tasmania
Caroline Evans	Member with expertise in history
Mary Duniam	Member representing community interests
David Gatenby	Member representing the Tasmanian Farmers and Graziers Association
Roger Hesketh	Member representing the Tasmanian Council of Churches
Jennifer Jones-Travers	Member with expertise in Archaeology
Genevieve Lilley	Member with expertise in architecture
Kathryn McCann	Member representing the Tourism (Industry) Council of Tasmania
Philip Mussared	Member representing the National Trust
Jessica Richmond	Member representing the mining industry with expertise in mining heritage
Peter Scott	Member representing the building development industry
Deidre Wilson	Alternate member for the Director of National Parks and Wildlife

Apologies

Jim Cox	Member representing the Local Government Association of Tasmania
Stuart King	Member representing heritage conservation interests

Heritage Tasmania

Andrew Roberts	Director
Annita Waghorn	Registration Manager
Ian Boersma	Works Manager
Anne Tolhurst	Manager Executive Services
Felicity Britten	Executive Officer

1.1.3. Declarations of Interest

- Peter Scott referred to agenda item 1.5.8 – *Profile of THR places – Derwent Valley Municipality*, and advised that Derwent Valley Arts is a client of his firm, Xsquared Architects Pty Ltd. It was agreed that this would be noted in the Register of Interests, however no conflict exists.
- Philip Mussared advised that he has been appointed as the Independent Chair of the Department of Primary Industries, Water and Environment (DPIPWE) Audit and Risk Committee from 1 November 2021. The Register of Interests will be updated accordingly.
- The Chair advised that her partner is on the Board of Tasracing and declared an interest in any future dealings the Heritage Council may have in relation to the Elwick Racecourse, which is listed in the Tasmanian Heritage Register.

1.1.4. Review of agenda and noting of ‘asterisked’ items

It was agreed that agenda item 1.5.6 – *THC resolution outside of meeting – New Bridgewater Bridge Major Project MPIS – 11 September 2021* be ‘un-starred’ to allow the wording of the resolution to be formally noted by the meeting and the wording included in the minutes of today’s meeting.

Move: David Gatenby **Second:** Peter Scott

20211020/1 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

NOTE those items from the agenda marked with an asterisk:

1.1.5 Register of Interests

1.2.2 THC Action Sheet

1.4.1 Heritage Tasmania Report to 31 July 2021

1.5.2 THC Work Plan (2021-22)

1.5.3 THC Contact List

1.5.4 Endorsed minutes of Works Committee Meeting 492 (12 May 2021) and 493 (29 July 2021)

1.5.5 Endorsed minutes of Registration Committee Meeting 2 – 20 May 2021

1.5.7 TPC correspondence – amendments to Bridgewater Bridge MPIS

1.5.8 Profile of THR places – Derwent Valley Municipality

1.1.5. Register of Interests

See item 1.1.4 above.

1.1.6. Work Health and Safety

The meeting was advised that further clarification of work health and safety provisions around members’ travel to and from meetings was being sought by DPIPWE.

In further discussion around travel, the rates for reimbursement of private vehicle use were noted, whereby a higher rate is paid for a larger engine size. The environmental impacts, possible means of addressing those, and incentives for car-pooling were raised.

Move: Simon Angilley **Second:** Peter Scott

20211020/2 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

Request Heritage Tasmania to investigate avenues via DPIPWE to lobby for the

adoption of a flat rate for reimbursement of private vehicle use within the State Service and Boards, and for incentives for car-pooling.

1.1.7. Round Table – brief updates

Members provided an update on recent activities.

- Caroline Evans advised that she, fellow Heritage Council member Jennifer Jones-Travers and Heritage Tasmania Registration Manager Annita Waghorn had recently met with Kristyn Harman, Associate Professor, UTas School of History and Classics to discuss areas of potential collaboration. She advised that it had been a stimulating meeting and undertook to share the notes ahead of discussions at the December Heritage Council meeting.

Caroline has also completed recent research for the [Find & Connect](#) Project on a property in Waterloo Crescent, Battery Point that previously operated as a family group home. *Find & Connect* is a web resource that brings together public historical resources relating to Australian orphanages, children's homes, and other institutions. They are happy for their resources to be used and referenced in Tasmania Heritage Register datasheets for relevant places.

- Simon Angilley advised that Central Coast Council will be shortly opening its new Cultural Heritage Precinct, including the Ulverstone History Museum. He also noted that the municipal heritage survey is underway. Methods for obtaining public feedback were discussed.
- Jennifer Jones-Travers advised that she has been working on the Central Coast Council heritage survey. The number of respondents and potential sites for inclusion in a local heritage code were discussed. Jennifer advised that she had received great input from some community representatives.
- David Gatenby advised that there had been a recent 'soft launch' of the Campbell Town bicentenary, with initial tours of the town and local farming properties sold out. David noted the future potential for running such tours on a regular basis.
- Genevieve Lilley noted that it was pleasing to see that planned events at this year's Unconformity festival had incorporated various unused buildings into performances. Although cancelled due to COVID, the festival is helping to invigorate and stimulate the town.
- Peter Scott noted that of the 130 entrants in the recent Master Builders Tasmania Awards for Excellence, only one was a heritage restoration project. Options for encouraging builders to showcase their heritage works, and possible partnership with MBT were discussed.
Peter Scott also advised of several projects that Xsquared Architects has underway in New Norfolk, Port Arthur, Hobart and Launceston.
- Deidre Wilson advised that DPIPWE will be releasing its draft Corporate Strategy on 1 December 2021, which will involve some restructure within the Department, with key changes relating to the independence of the Environment Protection Authority. She noted that the Heritage Council will be informed through that process.
Deidre also noted that the State Budget Community Consultation process is about to commence, with submissions due by 10 December 2021. A COVID recovery focus is expected.

1.2. **Minutes, Agenda Review and Action Sheet**

1.2.1. Draft Minutes of 18 August 2021 THC Meeting

Move: Peter Scott **Second:** Jennifer Jones-Travers
20211020/3 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

Accept as a true and accurate record, the draft minutes of the 18 August 2021 meeting of the Tasmanian Heritage Council (meeting 20210818).

1.2.2. Tasmanian Heritage Council Action Sheet

See 1.1.4 above.

1.3. Chair's Report

1.3.1. General Update from the Chair

Following on from discussions at the previous day's Strategic Planning Workshop, the Chair noted that the permanent seat for the Heritage Council Chair on the Premier's Visitor Economy Advisory Council (PVEAC) provides a mechanism for the Council to raise initiatives relating to the visitor economy.

The Chair confirmed that consultation with the member organisations with Heritage Council positions expiring at the end of 2021 is underway.

Move: Philip Mussared **Second:** Genevieve Lilley

20211020/4 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

Note the update provided by the Chair.

1.3.2. Early Colonial Timber Industry Precinct

Jennifer Jones-Travers advised the meeting that she had been approached in relation to early colonial timber-getting complex on kunanyi/Mount Wellington. Following a presentation from Jennifer, the history, potential significance and future cumulative impacts on the complex were discussed.

Move: David Gatenby **Second:** Deidre Wilson

20211020/5 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

Requests that Heritage Tasmania liaises with on-ground managers, Hobart City Council and the Wellington Park Management Trust, regarding plans for the area and report back to the December Heritage Council meeting on future options.

1.4 Director's Report

1.4.1 Heritage Tasmania Report to 31 July 2021

See 1.1.4 above.

1.5 Matters for Noting

1.5.1 THC Finance Report

The THC finance report to 30 September 2021 was noted by the meeting. It was also agreed that options and guidelines for the use of funds in the Heritage Fund be considered at December 2021 Heritage Council meeting.

1.5.2 THC Work Plan (2020-21)

See 1.1.4 above.

1.5.3 THC Contact List

See 1.1.4 above.

- 1.5.4 Endorsed Minutes of Works Committee Meetings 492 (12 May 2021) and 493 (29 July 2021)
See 1.1.4 above.
- 1.5.5 Endorsed Minutes of Registration Committee Meeting 2 – 20 May 2021
See 1.1.4 above.
- 1.5.6 THC resolution outside of meeting – New Bridgewater Bridge Major Project MPIS – 11 September 2021
Move: Genevieve Lilley **Second:** Jennifer Jones-Travers
20211020/6 Resolved:
That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:
NOTE the resolution made outside of meeting on 11 September 2021, in accordance with Clause 5A of Schedule 2 of the *Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995*, as follows:
Resolved that:
The Tasmanian Heritage Council respond to the Tasmanian Planning Commission Development Assessment Panel (the Panel) regarding the New Bridgewater Bridge Major Project Impact Statement (MPIS), requesting amendments to the MPIS as per the briefing and draft response to the Panel, provided to Heritage Council members for consideration by email on 9 September 2021.
- 1.5.7 TPC correspondence – amendments to Bridgewater Bridge Major Project MPIS
See 1.1.4 above.
- 1.5.8 Profile of THR places – Derwent Valley Municipality
See 1.1.4 above.
- 1.5.9 Presentation – Introduction to the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1975
Emily Smith, Manager (Operations), Aboriginal Heritage Tasmania, joined the meeting and provided members with an overview of the structure of Aboriginal Heritage Tasmania and the history and operation of the *Aboriginal Heritage Act 1975*. Emily also provided some information on projects within the Tasmanian Wilderness World Heritage Area. Following a question-and-answer session with members, Emily was thanked for her excellent presentation and left the meeting.

1.6 Strategic and Policy Matters

- 1.6.1 Revised THC governance and policy documents
Move: Caroline Evans **Second:** Roger Hesketh
20211020/7 Resolved:
That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:
1. Note the following new draft Tasmanian Heritage Council governance documents (provided as Attachments 3-6), which will be submitted to the December 2021 THC meeting for formal endorsement, with any further changes to be shown in ‘track-changes’:
 - *Memorandum of Understanding – Defining the relationship between the Tasmanian Heritage Council and Heritage Tasmania*
 - *Council Charter*
 - *Council Meeting Procedures*
 - *Operational Policies and Procedures*
 2. Note the draft new *THC Policy – Access to Information* (Attachment 7), replacing the previous Public Access Policy
 3. Note the draft revised *THC Procedure – Appointment of Deputy Chairperson* (Attachment 8)

4. Note the intention to provide a draft revised *Deputations and Presentations Policy* and draft revised *Stakeholder Engagement Strategy* to the December 2021 Heritage Council meeting
5. Note that a Heritage Council induction package is being developed and will be presented to the December 2021 Heritage Council meeting

2. MATTERS FOR DECISION

2.1 Works Matters

2.1.1 Audit of works decisions made under delegation

Genevieve Lilley, Chair of the Heritage Council's Works Committee, advised that at its last meeting, the Committee had completed its annual review of works decisions made under delegation. The methodology was discussed, and it was noted that the Committee determined that all decisions had been made well and with appropriate conditions, and that no areas of concern had been identified.

2.2 Registration Matters

2.2.1 Tasmanian Heritage Register Registration Guide

Move: Genevieve Lilley **Second:** Mary Duniam

20211020/8 *Resolved:*

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

ENDORSE the Registration Guide as amended to guide the future preparation of Heritage Register entries, noting that further updates to the Registration Guide on issues including identification of archaeological potential as well as Aboriginal history and cultural values will be presented to the Heritage Council for consideration, with a review to be completed in 12 months' time.

2.2.2 Tasmanian Heritage Register datasheet – proposed format upgrades

Move: Simon Angilley **Second:** Peter Scott

20211020/9 *Resolved:*

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

ENDORSE the proposed updates to the format of Heritage Register datasheets as amended.

2.2.3 Audit of registration decisions made under delegation (verbal)

Deferred to December 2021 Heritage Council meeting due to the absence of the Chair of the Heritage Council's Registration Committee.

2.2.4 Review of Amending and Replacing Entries in the Tasmanian Heritage Register – Policy and Procedure

Move: David Gatenby **Second:** Jennifer Jones-Travers

20211020/10 *Resolved:*

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

ENDORSE the proposed updated policy on *Amending and Replacing Heritage Register Entries*.

2.2.5 New permanent entry to THR – Halls Hut, Halls Island, Walls of Jerusalem National Park

Move: Jessica Richmond **Second:** Roger Hesketh

20211020/11 *Resolved:*

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

APPROVE the permanent entry in the Heritage Register for Halls Hut, Lake Malbena, (THR#10805), as per the datasheet and the boundary plan provided in Attachment 7.

2.2.6 New permanent entry to THR – Kermandie Experimental Pulp and Paper Mill site, Port Huon

Move: Philip Mussared **Second:** Caroline Evans

20211020/12 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

APPROVE the permanent entry in the Heritage Register of an entry for the Kermandie Experimental Pulp and Paper Mill site (THR 10123) – on parts of 85 Whale Point Rd and the adjacent Crown Land, at Port Huon – as per the Boundary Plan and the Datasheet provided in Attachment 1.

2.2.7 Permanent replacement entry to THR – Church of St Mary the Virgin & Cemetery, Church Road, Gretna

Move: Jessica Richmond **Second:** Roger Hesketh

20211020/13 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry in the Heritage Register of a replacement entry for 31 Church Road, Gretna (THR #12032), as per the datasheet and the boundary plan provided in Attachment 1.
2. NOTE the intention to prepare an amendment to the revised entry (THR #12032) to include significant moveable heritage items once the Anglican Diocese has completed its church faculty.
3. WRITE to the Anglican Diocese, providing the updated datasheet and boundary plan, and advising that the Heritage Council has a strong interest in the place and requests that the church faculty be completed in the next 6-12 months, and prior to the sale of the property.
4. APPROVE the intention to remove 31 Church Road, Gretna (THR #826; Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the *Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995* on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry for Church of St Mary the Virgin and Cemetery (THR #12032), and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5) (a) and s22 (6).

2.2.8 Permanent replacement entry to THR - St James' Anglican Church & Cemetery, Jericho Road, Jericho

Move: Jennifer Jones-Travers **Second:** Genevieve Lilley

20211020/14 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry in the Heritage Register of a replacement entry for St James' Anglican Church & Cemetery, 458 Jericho Road, Jericho (THR #12027), as per the datasheet and the boundary plan provided in Attachment 3.
2. APPROVE the intention to remove St James' Anglican Church, 458 Jericho Road, Jericho (THR #5444; Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the *Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995* on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry for 458 Jericho Road, Jericho (THR #12027), and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5) (a) and s22 (6).

2.2.9 Permanent replacement entry to THR – St Peter's Anglican Church and Rectory, Talbot Street, Fingal

Move: Roger Hesketh **Second:** Jennifer Jones-Travers

20211020/15 *Resolved:*

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry in the Heritage Register of a replacement entry for St Peter's Anglican Church & Rectory, 2 Talbot Street, Fingal, (THR #12017), as per the datasheet and the boundary plan provided in Attachment 1.
2. APPROVE the intention to remove St Peter's Anglican Church, 2 Talbot Street, Fingal (THR #573; Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995 on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry for St Peter's Anglican Church & Rectory, 2 Talbot Street, Fingal (THR #12017), and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5) (a) and s22 (6).

2.2.10 Permanent replacement entry to THR – St Mary's Anglican Church, Parsonage and Cemetery, Hagley

It was noted that any reference to 'parsonage' for any Anglican Church property in Tasmania should be amended to 'rectory'.

Move: David Gatenby **Second:** Deidre Wilson

20211020/16 *Resolved:*

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry in the Heritage Register of a revised entry for St Mary's Anglican Church, Rectory and Cemetery (THR#12012), 65 Church Lane, Hagley as per the datasheet and the boundary plan provided in Attachment 5.
2. APPROVE the intention to remove St Mary's Anglican Church and Cemetery (THR#4829; Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995 on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry St Mary's Anglican Church, Rectory and Cemetery (THR#12012), 65 Church Lane, Hagley, and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5) (a) and s22 (6).

2.2.11 Permanent replacement entry to THR – St John's Anglican Church, Ross

Move: Deidre Wilson **Second:** Genevieve Lilley

20211020/17 *Resolved:*

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry in the Heritage Register of a revised entry for St John's Anglican Church, Ross, 11 Church St, Ross (THR#12013), as per the datasheet and the boundary plan provided in Attachment 3.
2. APPROVE the intention to remove St John's Anglican Church (THR#5284; Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995 on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry for St John's Anglican Church, Ross, 11 Church St, Ross (THR#12013), and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5)(a) and s22(6).

2.2.12 Permanent replacement entry to THR – Woodbury, Midland Highway, Woodbury

Move: Simon Angilley **Second:** Philip Mussared

20211020/18 *Resolved:*

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry for Woodbury, 7489 Midland Highway. 7487 Midland Highway, Woodbury (THR#12007) to update the information relating to the entry, as per the datasheet and the boundary plan (Attachment 1).

2. APPROVE the intention to remove Woodbury House, 7489 Midland Highway, Woodbury (THR#5594; Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995 on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry for Woodbury (THR #12007), and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5) (a) and s22 (6).

2.2.13 Permanent replacement entry to THR – Strathborough, Hollow Tree

Move: Peter Scott **Second:** Genevieve Lilley

20211020/19 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry for Strathborough, 2021 Hollow Tree Road, Hollow Tree (THR#12006) to update the information relating to the entry, as per the datasheet and the boundary plan (Attachment 5).
2. APPROVE the intention to remove Strathborough, Hollow Tree Road, Hollow Tree (THR #862; Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995 on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry for Strathborough (THR #12006), and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5) (a) and s22 (6).

2.2.14 Permanent replacement entry to THR – Cawood, Tor Hill Road, Ouse

Move: Jessica Richmond **Second:** Caroline Evans

20211020/20 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry for Cawood, 167 Tor Hill Road, Ouse (THR#12003) to update the information relating to the entry, as per the datasheet and the boundary plan (Attachment 1), as amended.
2. APPROVE the intention to remove Cawood, 167 Tor Hill Road, Ouse (THR #884; Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995 on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry for Cawood (THR #12003, and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5) (a) and s22 (6).

2.2.15 Permanent replacement entry to THR – Hunter’s Hill, barn and cottages, Tor Hill Road, Ouse

Move: Deidre Wilson **Second:** Jennifer Jones-Travers

20211020/21 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry for Hunter’s Hill, barn and cottages, 167 Tor Hill Road, Ouse (THR#12004) to update the information relating to the entry, as per the datasheet and the boundary plan (Attachment 1).
2. APPROVE the intention to remove Hunter’s Hill Barn, 167 Tor Hill Road, Ouse (THR #875; Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995 on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry for Hunter’s Hill, barn and cottages (THR #12004, and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5) (a) and s22 (6).

2.2.16 Permanent replacement entry to THR – Richmond Gaol

Move: David Gatenby **Second:** Peter Scott

20211020/22 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry in the Heritage Register of a replacement entry for Richmond Gaol, 35 & 37 Bathurst Street, Richmond (THR12015), as per the datasheet and the boundary plan provided in Attachment 1.
2. APPROVE the intention to remove Richmond Gaol (THR1074 -Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995 on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry for Richmond Gaol (THR12015), and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5) (a) and s22 (6).

2.2.17 Permanent replacement entry to THR – Scotch Oakburn College

Move: Philip Mussared **Second:** Genevieve Lilley

20211020/23 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

1. APPROVE the permanent entry in the Heritage Register of a revised entry for Scotch Oakburn College, Elphin Campus (THR#12033), 74-78 Elphin Rd, Launceston as per the datasheet and the boundary plan provided in Attachment 4.
2. APPROVE the intention to remove Scotch Oakburn College (THR#4179 - Attachment 2) from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s22 (1A) (c) of the Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995 on the basis that this entry is duplicated or substantially duplicated by the replacement entry for Scotch Oakburn College, Elphin Campus (THR#12033), and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities pursuant to s22(5) (a) and s22 (6).

2.2.18 Removal of duplicate THR entry – Woodstock (house and stables), Triabunna

Move: Roger Hesketh **Second:** Jennifer Jones-Travers

20211020/24 Resolved:

That the Tasmanian Heritage Council:

APPROVE the removal of the entry for 'Woodstock (house and stables)' (THR#1579), 8311 Tasman Highway, Triabunna, from the Tasmanian Heritage Register, pursuant to s25 of the *Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995*, on the basis that it duplicates or substantially duplicates the replacement entry 'Woodstock' (THR#12001), and subsequently writing to owners and planning authorities of this decision pursuant to s26(a).

3. OTHER BUSINESS

3.1.1 Any other business

Nil

3.1.2 Meeting review

The Chair expressed her appreciation for the work done by Heritage Tasmania staff in preparation for today's meeting. She noted that there had been much discussion at yesterday's Strategic Planning Workshop around progress with the cadastral work and online delivery of the Heritage Register, which are important areas of focus. The good alignment between the Heritage Council's strategic priorities and Heritage Tasmania was also noted.

4. NEXT MEETING

4.1 Date of next meeting:

- Regular, bi-monthly meeting: 10.00am – 2.00pm, Wednesday 8 December 2021, Level 1, 134 Macquarie Street, Hobart or via MS Teams

Meeting concluded at 1.53pm.

**Meeting No 20211020
Held on 20 October 2021**

Signed as a correct record

A handwritten signature in black ink, appearing to read 'Brett Torossi', is written over a faint, large watermark of the same signature.

**Brett Torossi
Chair**

7 December 2021